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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) takes no responsibility for
the contents of this announcement, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.

This announcement, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Soluteck Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief (1) the information
contained in this announcement is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in
this announcement misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this announcement have been
arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that
are fair and reasonable.

SOLUTECK HOLDINGS LIMITED
�� !"#$%&' *

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2002

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a
high investment risk may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with
neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed
on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater
risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM. The principal means of information
dissemination on GEM is publication on the internet website operated by the Stock
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in
gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they need to
have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed
issuers.

* For identification only
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ANNUAL RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS

The Group achieved a turnover of approximately HK$208 million for the financial year
ended 31 March, 2002 with profit attributable to Shareholders of approximately HK$8
million, representing a decrease of approximately 31 per cent. and approximately 67 per
cent., respectively, as compared to those in the financial year ended 31 March, 2001.

The Group managed to improve its gross profit margin from approximately 21 per cent. in
the financial year ended 31 March, 2001 to approximately 25 per cent. in the financial year
ended 31 March, 2002.

Earnings per Share for the financial year ended 31 March, 2002 was approximately 1.79
cents (earnings per Share for the financial year ended 31 March, 2001 was approximately
5.94 cents).

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HK$0.005 per Share for the financial year
ended 31 March, 2002 (Dividend per Share for the financial year ended 31 March, 2001 was
nil).

REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS

General

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2002, the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) underwent strategic and operational changes in response to keen competition in
the market of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC” or “China”). The Group adjusted its
strategy to focus on provision of technical services to pursue for a relatively stable source of
income. The Group also emphasised on provision of value-added services and quality
fulfillment. Despite the decline in the overall global economy, during the financial year ended
31 March, 2002, the Group still recorded a profit, albeit that the results were not as good as
the expectation of the board (the “Board”) of Directors.

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2002, the Group recorded a decrease in its turnover
to approximately HK$208 million, representing a decrease of approximately 31 per cent. as
compared with the turnover for the financial year ended 31 March, 2001. The decrease in
turnover was principally attributable to the decrease in the Group’s business as a result of
keen competition in the PRC market. However, the Group managed to improve its gross profit
margin by promoting its technical services which contributed approximately 20 per cent. of its
turnover in the financial year ended 31 March, 2002. , as compared with approximately 13 per
cent. of the Group’s turnover for the financial year ended 31 March, 2001. Therefore, the
gross profit margin of the Group increased to approximately 25 per cent. in the current
financial year as compared with approximately 21 per cent. in financial year ended 31 March,
2001.

Weighing on its customer base and long-term business relationship with reputable commercial
banks and postal bureaus in the PRC, the Group continued to develop and promote its core
business. As an established “Total Solutionist” in the information technology market, the
Group continued to expand and enhance its business by having established 15 service centers
in Guangzhou, Shanghai, Beijing, Chengdu, Shenyang, Qingdao, Zhengzhou, Wuhan, Wenzhou,
Nanjing, Hefei, Xian, Chongqing, Haikou and Fuzhou. The Directors believe that the present
trend of the banking and postal industries will give additional business opportunities for the
new systems and the technical services provided by the Group, and this is expected to yield
better growth and profitability in the future.
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Banking and postal sectors

The Group continued to provide total information technology solutions for the banking and
postal industries in the PRC with focus on implementation and upgrading automatic teller
machine (“ATM”) systems and provision of system hardware and software technical support
and consultancy services. With good progress made in promoting its services, the Group
entered into increasing number of ATM maintenance contracts with its customers. The Group
also started the provision of ATM maintenance services to Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China, which is one of the financial institutions in the PRC operating sophisticated ATM
network. Leveraging the strength in its good business relationship with large financial
institutions and postal bureaus in the PRC, such as the Bank of Communications, Shanghai
Pudong Development Bank, State Post Bureau of China and etc., the Group continued to
provide customers with tailor-made technology solutions and provide inter-bank ATM card
software to more than 20 bank branches. The Group also entered into contract with a prominent
commercial bank in Hong Kong to provide banking software for its branches in Shanghai, the
PRC.

Despite the fact that there was a decrease in demand for postal equipment such as Pitney
Bowes products, the demand for software middleware, such as the Bank24 developed by the
Group, designated to develop postal applications seemed to increase. As a result, the Group
signed contracts to develop a Bank Securities Clearing System for securities institutions and a
Postal Logistic System for postal bureaus in the PRC, both of which were launched in September
2001. Leveraging its strength and position in this business segment, the Group endeavored to
expand its revenue source by expanding its sales and distribution network in the PRC and
further venture to position itself as an “one-stop” information technology solution provider to
banking and financial institutions in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC.

The PRC information technology market remains a market with vast potential for growth. The
banking and postal industries in the PRC have generated strong market demand for automation
products. In view of continuous demand generated by commercial banks in the PRC endeavoring
to upgrade their systems for real-time transfers and settlement of inter-bank transactions as
part of the “Gold Card Project” and by the State Post Bureau of China attempting to create a
saving and deposit-taking services network as part of the “Green Card Project,” the Group
will continue to strengthen the research and development in proprietary software products and
e-banking platform and the relevant components, with the objective of providing customers
with inter-bank electronic payment systems and general banking and credit card systems.

Prospects upon China’s accession to the World Trade Organisation (“WTO”)

In view of the continuous development of the PRC’s domestic market, coupled with the
accession of China to the WTO and opening up of China’s banking industry to foreign banks,
additional business opportunities for information technology providers will remain abundant.

Building on its software development and hardware maintenance capacity, well-positioned to
capture surging opportunities because of its market experience and technological competitive
edge, the Group will continue to focus on promoting its technical maintenance services for
ATM, including software provision, to assure a stable source of income. In addition to the
Bank24 platform, the Group will also develop Bank Securities Clearing Software, Postal
Logistic System, Utilities Payment Software and other postal applications software based on
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the Bank24 platform. Furthermore, the Group will expand its business through business
partnership and continue to pursue the growth strategy of enhancing product research and
development, expanding market reach for existing and emerging products and rendering more
customised and localised services to its customers. In light of these plans, the Directors are
confident in keeping abreast of the latest development so as to consolidate and enhance the
Group’s existing business.

PROSPECTS

With the anticipated development of the domestic market in the PRC, the drive for modernisation
and improvement in efficiency, together with the accession of the PRC to the WTO, the
Directors believe that additional opportunities will emerge for information technology solution
providers, particularly with the opening up of the PRC’s banking and finance industries.

Commercial banks and postal saving bureaus in the PRC will continue to expand and upgrade
existing services to prepare for imminent foreign competition. Since foreign banks will need
to collaborate with experienced and well-equipped local partners to penetrate the PRC market,
the Directors are confident in the continuous growth of the Group’s core business and the
implementation of self-service ATM systems in the PRC.

While continuing to focus on the promotion of ATM services, including maintenance and
software provision, to assure a stable source of income, the Group will further expand its
business through business partnership. In addition to the continuous promotion of the Bank24
platform, the Group will also promote Bank Securities Clearing Software, Postal Logistic
System, Utilities Payment Software and other postal applications software based on the Bank24
platform. The Group will continue to explore market opportunities for e-banking and corporate
e-banking application solutions to banks and financial institutions. With the launch of new
products, such as the Browser Base eTeller System in May 2001, re-engineering of the Bank24
platform into an Enterprise Application Integration engine and Integrated Application Platform
in the PRC, the provision of corporate e-banking application solution on a business-to-business
platform has already strengthened the Groups’ relationship with the banking and finance
sector and will hence continue to create a stable source of income for the Group.

The Group will further pursue opportunities of collaborating with universities and research
institutions in the PRC on technology research and development. The Group will continue to
enhance its marketing capability and enlarge its customer base. Also for this reason, the Group
endeavored to engage additional business partners in Taiwan, Bangkok, Thailand, Malaysia
and Singapore to further extend its market reach. Committed to providing high quality hardware
and technology support and consultancy services, the Group will continue to provide
comprehensive systems integration, pre-sale and after-sale support, maintenance and
enhancement services as well as technical support to its customers.

The Group is fully prepared for the additional business opportunities ahead. The continuous
growth of the PRC economy is a positive development to the regional economy, albeit the
global economic condition is not entirely favourable. While remaining optimistic on the
continuous growth of the PRC market, the Directors are confident on a bright future for
information technology solution providers, especially with regard to the PRC market which is
expected to achieve significant economic growth in the near future.
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COMPARISON OF THE BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH THE ACTUAL BUSINESS
PROGRESS

Set forth below is a progress report of the business objectives as set forth in the Company’s
prospectus (the “Prospectus”) dated 22 December, 2000:–

Actual business progress
Business objectives in respect of the period from
as stated in the Prospectus 1 October, 2001 to 31 March, 2002 (Note)

Sales and revenue

1. Expand the revenue source of the
Group by expanding its sales and
distribution network in the PRC

2. Strengthen the revenue source of the
Group in Hong Kong by positioning
t h e  G r o u p  a s  a n  “ o n e - s t o p ”
information technology solution
provider to banks and financial
institutions in Hong Kong, Macau and
the PRC

The Group continued to promote the sale of the
BANK24 platform and complimentary e-banking
applications software to banks and financial
institutions in the PRC.

During the period under review, the Group
established nine additional service centers
separately in Qingdao, Wuhan, Wenzhou,
Nanjing, Hefei, Xian, Chongqing, Haikou and
Fuzhou, which in aggregate resulted in a total of
15 service centers in the PRC.

With good progress made in promoting its
services, the Group made additional revenue from
maintenance contracts due to the increasing
number of ATMs in service.

Leveraging the strength in its good business
relationship with reputable financial institutions
and postal bureaus in Hong Kong, Macau and
the PRC, the Group continued to provide
customers with tailor-made technology solutions
to satisfy their increasing needs. Owing to an
increase in demand for software middleware,
such as the Bank24 developed by the Group, the
Group entered into contracts to provide a Bank
Securities Clearing System for securities
institutions and a Postal Logistic System for
postal bureaus in the PRC, both of which were
launched in September 2001.

Note:–

The actual business progress of the Group, as compared with its business objectives, during the period
between 1 April, 2001 and 30 September, 2001 was set forth in the Company’s interim report dated 12
November, 2001.
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Actual business progress
Business objectives in respect of the period from
as stated in the Prospectus 1 October, 2001 to 31 March, 2002

Research and development

1. Continue the enhancement of the
Group’s exist ing proprietary
software products and further
develop the e-banking platform and
its components

2. Develop e-commerce applications
software for banks and financial
institutions in Hong Kong, Macau,
the PRC and other  Chinese-
speaking communities

3. Develop applications software for
foreign exchange banking services

4. Develop Customer Relationship
Management System jointly with
ACW Consulting Pty Ltd. (“ACW”)

The Group succeeded in launching the following
new products: –

a. Browser Base eTeller System in May 2001,

b. re-engineering Bank24 into an Enterprise
Application Integration engine and Integrated
Application Platform in the PRC,

c. Liu Chong Hing eBanking Infra-structure,

d. Standard Chartered Bank Cash Management
System r13,

e. China Post (Shanghai) Integrated Application
Platform,

f. Fortis Bank (Hong Kong) eBanking Platform,
and

g. Seng Heng Bank Master Maestro System.

The Group signed a contract with a prominent bank
in Hong Kong to provide banking software for its
branches in Shanghai, the PRC. The Group will
continue to develop e-commerce application
software for banks and financial institutions in Hong
Kong, Macau and other Chinese-speaking
communities.

In light of the current market requirement, the Group
will endeavor to develop utility payment software
for banking services instead.

As the current market condition is not favourable
for the Group to continue the development of the
Customers  Relationship Management System and
the Chinese version of Datawarehouse and Business
Intelligent System with ACW, the Group has
suspended the maneuver and will collaborate with
other business partners to develop the Postal
Logistic System for postal bureaus in the PRC.
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1. Continue the promotion and marketing
of the products and services provided
by the Group by holding seminars and
participating in road shows and
exhibitions in the PRC and other Asian
regions

2. Strengthen the sales and marketing
capability of the Group’s local
d i s t r i b u t o r s  i n  t h e  P R C  b y
implementing training programs

3. Subject to satisfactory results from the
feasibility studies on expansion of the
Group’s business to other Asian
regions, appoint local distributors to
promote the Group’s products and
services in Taiwan

Actual business progress
Business objectives in respect of the period from
as stated in the Prospectus 1 October, 2001 to 31 March, 2002

Marketing

The Group held a series of conferences, seminars
and exhibitions in the PRC during the period
under review for its existing and prospective
customers.

The Group had set up training sessions for its
local partners and its sales marketing staff in
Taiwan and the PRC to strengthen their sales
and marketing capability.

Besides Taiwan, the PRC and Indonesia, the
Group also recruited partners in Bangkok,
Thailand, Malaysia and Singapore respectively
with a view to expand its business in other South
East Asia.

1. Establish two customer service centers
in the PRC to expand market coverage

2. R e c r u i t  a d d i t i o n a l  b u s i n e s s
development and technical staff to
cope with the anticipated growth in
the Group’s business in the PRC

During the period under review, the Group
established nine more service centers separately
in Qingdao, Wuhan, Wenzhou, Nanjing, Hefei,
Xian, Chongqing, Haikou and Fuzhou, and
summed into a total of 15 service centers in the
PRC.

In keeping with the Group’s tight control on
expenditure, the Group did not recruit additional
staff during the period under review. Good
progress was made in cost and expenses control
as the salary structure was changed to decrease
the fixed portion of salary with an increase of
the payment that is consistent with performance.
As a result, performance became the factor
determining the amount of salary of an employee.

Moreover, the Group focused on enhancing its
in-house training, team-building and upgrading
its existing staff. As such, the Group’s team of
dedicated professionals is committed to serving
existing and prospective clients.

Resources employment
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE PLACING OF SHARES
The Company issued the Prospectus in connection with a placing of an aggregate of 60,000,000
Shares (the “Placing”). The net proceeds from the Placing amounted to approximately HK$17.9
million, of which the Directors have applied, as at 31 March, 2002, in the following manner:–

From 1 April From 1 October
From 2001 to 2001 to

29 December, 2000 30 September, 31 March,
to 31 March, 2001 2001 2002

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

For the research and development
of proprietary software
for e-banking business 1.0 1.0 1.0

For the expansion of distribution
and service networks including
the expansion of the existing
PRC subsidiaries, recruitment of
additional staff and purchase of
additional office equipment 1.0 0.6 0.3

For establishing additional customer
services centres in the PRC as well as
recruitment of additional staff and
purchase of additional office equipment 0.2 0.2 0.2

For establishing a research and
development centre – 0.8 0.2

For investing in application hosting
service businesses through
Supreme Tech Development Limited – 0.3 –

2.2 2.9 1.7

There was a shortfall of HK$1.7 million in investing in application hosting service business
(the “ASP business”) as compared with that stated in the Prospectus. The principal reason for
such delay in investment was that the Directors believe that, giving the prevailing economic
condition, it would not be in the interest of the Group to deploy its management resources to
engage in the ASP business. The Company will continue to consider such investment
opportunites in the future. The remaining net proceeds of approximately HK$11.1 million
(2001: HK$15.7 million) were placed on short term deposits with banks in Hong Kong for
future use as identified by the Group’s business plans.

DIVIDEND
In view of the Group’s sustainable development, the Board recommends the payment of a
final dividend of HK$0.005 per share (the “Share”) of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 March, 2002.

APPRECIATION
As at 31 March, 2002, the Group employed 116 and 49 staff in the PRC and Hong Kong,
respectively. We treasure the harmonious relationship with our staff and would like to take
this opportunity to express our gratitude to the management and staff of the Group for their
dedicated performance which is instrumental to the future development of the Group.

We would also like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders (the “Shareholders”),
suppliers and customers for their continuous support to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF THE RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Review of operations

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$208 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 31 per cent. as compared with the turnover for the financial year ended 31
March, 2001. The profit attributable to Shareholders decreased by approximately 67 per cent.
to approximately HK$8 million with earnings per Share decreased to approximately 1.79
cents. The decline in turnover and profit attributable to Shareholders was principally attributable
to keen competition in the PRC market. Moreover, the Group adopted a conservative project
selection policy to avoid reduction in profit margins that caused further decline in turnover.
However, the Group made good progress in promoting its professional services and recorded
an increase in the turnover deriving therefrom by approximately 6 per cent.

Revenue and turnover

The Group is principally engaged in the sale of electronic banking systems, such as ATM
systems, other banking equipment and mailing systems, and the provision of hardware and
software technical support services. Revenues recognised during the financial year are as
follows: –

Financial year ended
31 March,

2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover
Sales of goods 165,823 263,697
Rendering of services 42,178 39,694

208,001 303,391

Other revenue
Interest income 660 2,699

208,661 306,090

Analysis of turnover for the financial Analysis of turnover for the financial
year ended 31 March, 2002 year ended 31 March, 2001

4% Implementation of 
postal automation systems

8% Development of 
e-banking Software

88% Implementation of
self-service ATM systems

4% Development of 
e-banking Software

9% Cash 
Management systems

85% Implementation of
self-service ATM systems

2% Implementation of 
postal automation systems     
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Implementation of self-service ATM systems

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2002, the implementation of self-service ATM
systems remained the Group’s core business and accounted for approximately 88 per cent.
(2001: 85 per cent.) of the Group’s total turnover, including the income derived from the
provision of technical consultancy and support services.

The turnover generated from the implementation of self-service ATM systems amounted to
approximately HK$182 million, representing a decrease of approximately 29 per cent., as
compared to that in last financial year. Such decrease was due to keen competition in the PRC
market .

As an authorised value-added reseller of self-service ATM systems of NCR (Hong Kong)
Limited (“NCR”) and related applications software for commercial banks in the PRC, the
Group was responsible for the design, installation and provision of maintenance services for
self-service ATM systems. The NCR’s award demonstrated the Group’s success in implementing
banking information technology solutions and the extensive customer base of the Group which
included major commercial banks and the State Postal Bureau of the PRC as well as prominent
banks in Hong Kong and Macau was a testimony to the Group’s experience in the industry.
With the development of branch networks by the said banks in the PRC, the Group expects
that demand for self-service ATM systems will continue to increase.

Furthermore, with its in-house research and development capability, the Group also developed
application software to facilitate the operation of self-service ATM systems. For the financial
year ended 31 March, 2002, the Group successfully completed and launched the Browser Base
eTeller System, the Bank Securities Clearing System and Postal Logistic System, the Utilities
Payment Software and other postal applications software based on the Bank24 platform.

Implementation of electronic postal automation systems

The implementation of electronic postal automation systems accounted for approximately 4
per cent. (2001: 2 per cent.) of the total turnover of the Group for the financial year ended 31
March, 2002. The turnover generated from the implementation of electronic postal automation
systems amounted to approximately HK$8 million.

Despite a decrease in demand for the postal equipment, such as Pitney Bowes products, the
demand for software middleware, such as Bank24 developed by the Group, designated to
develop postal applications seemed to  increase. As a result, the Group entered into contracts
to develop a Bank Securities Clearing System for securities institutions and a Postal Logistic
System for postal bureaus in the PRC. The products were launched in September 2001 and the
investment expenditure for the development of this software was capitalised into intangible
assets of the Group amounting to HK$403,709.

In view of the unexpected slowdown in demand for electronic postal automation systems in
the PRC, which included mailing finishing systems, volume mailing handling systems and
franking machines, the Group will continue to explore the PRC market.
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Provision of technical consultancy and support services

The provision of technical consultancy and support services contributed to a stable source of
income for the Group and accounted for approximately 20 per cent. (2001: 13 per cent.) of the
total turnover of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March, 2002. The Group’s operational
subsidiaries located in Beijing, Shanghai, Chengdu and Guangzhou served to provide
comprehensive banking and postal system integration, pre-sales and after-sales support,
maintenance and enhancement services and technical support to customers. As the Group
continued to expand and enhance its business, 15 service centers have been established in
major commercial cities in the PRC.

Development of e-banking software

For the financial year ended 31 March, 2002, the business of e-banking application software
developed by the Group for commercial and financial institutions accounted for approximately
8 per cent. (2001: 4 per cent.) of the Group’s total turnover. The Group’s in-house research
and development team of experienced engineers based in Beijing, Shanghai and Hong Kong
are currently providing localisation and customisation services for ATM-related support
softwares to customers and engaging in the development of the Group’s proprietary softwares.
For the financial year ended 31 March, 2002, the Group provided inter-bank ATM card software
to more than 20 bank branches and signed a contract with a prominent bank in Hong Kong to
provide banking software to its branches in Shanghai, the PRC.

Committed to continue the research and development of e-banking application software and
further improve its e-banking facilities to existing and future customers, for the financial year
ended 31 March, 2002, the Group developed a series of e-banking software systems including
the Liu Chong Hing eBanking Infra-structure, Standard Chartered Bank Cash Management
System r13, China Post (Shanghai) Integrated Application Platform, Fortis Bank (Hong Kong)
eBanking Platform and Seng Heng Bank Master Maestro System which were used by a
number of commercial banks in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Interest income

As a result of recent decreases in the interest rate, the interest income of the Group declined
by approximately 76 per cent. during the financial year ended 31 March, 2002.

Gross profit

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2002, the Group managed to improve its gross
profit margin by promoting its maintenance and technical support services. The gross profit
margin increased to approximately 25 per cent. (2001: 21 per cent.), albeit that there was a
decrease in the amount of gross profit, as compared to the same for the financial year ended
31 March, 2001.
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Selling expenses

Selling expenses incurred by the Group for the financial year ended 31 March, 2002 amounted
to approximately HK$12 million (2001: HK$9 million), representing an increase of
approximately 33 per cent., which was mainly because four out of five of the Group’s
subsidiaries were operational towards the middle of 2001. These subsidiaries were in their
early stage of development and had a high level of selling expenses as compared to their sales
contributions to the Group.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses incurred by the Group for the financial year ended 31 March, 2002
amounted to approximately HK$32 million (2001: HK$29 million), representing an increase
of approximately 10 per cent. and was due to the establishment of four subsidiaries in the
PRC so as to expand the sales and distribution network.

Staff cost (including Directors emoluments) which was included in both selling expenses and
administrative expenses increased by approximately 17 per cent. to approximately HK$28
million (2001: 24 million) mainly due to commencement of operations of four subsidiaries in
the PRC. In order to strengthen its cost control, the Group had changed the salary structure to
reduce the fixed portion of salary with an increase of the portion that is based on performance.
Moreover, several Directors had agreed to waive their discretionary management bonuses in
view of the existing market condition.

For the financial year ended 31 March, 2002, the Group made a provision for bad and doubtful
debt of approximately HK$2 million (2001: nil) for the sake of prudence which lead to an
increase in administrative expenses by approximately HK$2 million.

Moreover, due to the Group’s commitment to constantly research and develop new banking
and postal software, research and development costs, which was included in the administrative
expenses increased by approximately 34 per cent. during the financial year.

Depreciation expenses increased by approximately 24 per cent. as compared to that of last
financial year mainly because of the addition of fixed assets to cope with the expansion of the
Group’s business into different regions of the PRC.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March, 2002 increased slightly
to HK$116,000 (2001: HK$94,000).

Taxation

The Group’s taxation charge for the financial year ended 31 March, 2002 decreased by
approximately 80 per cent. to HK$1 million (2001: HK$5 million) primarily due to the lower
profit reported for the financial year.
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Liquidity and financial resources

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cash flow. As at 31
March, 2002, the Group had cash and bank balances amounting to a total of approximately
HK$40 million (2001: HK$32 million) and had outstanding short-term bank loan of
approximately HK$5 million (2001: Nil) which represented the total borrowings of the Group
as at that date. This short-term loan was repayable within 1 year and at interest rate of
approximately 5 per cent. over the base rate announced by People’s Bank of China.

With these resources and the proceeds from the new issue of shares in January 2001, the
Board believes that the Group has adequate capital resources to finance its business objectives
as stated in the Prospectus.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 March, 2002, the gearing ratio of the Group, based on total liabilities over total
assets was approximately 54 per cent. (2001: approximately 59 per cent.)

Banking facilities

As at 31 March, 2002, the Group’s banking facilities of approximately HK$45 million (2001:
HK$12 million) are secured by the following: –

(a) pledged deposits of HK$7 million (2001: HK$9 million);

(b) corporate guarantees by the Company and its subsidiaries of approximately HK$47 million
(2001: HK$12 million); and

(c) personal guarantee by Mr. Tam Wing Chit, Tom, a Director, of HK$400,000 (2001: Nil)

Treasury policies and capital structure

The Group’s overall treasury and funding policies are prudent, with a focus on risk management,
and those transactions which are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.
Assets which are denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong and United States dollars,
in particular, Renminbi assets, are hedged with the appropriate level of borrowings in Renminbi
and bank deposits in Hong Kong and United States dollars. When necessary, forward exchange
contracts will be used to hedge against foreign currency exposures. As at 31 March, 2002, the
Group has no exposure under foreign exchange contracts.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March, 2002, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

Exposure to foreign exchange risk

In its ordinary course of business, the Group has no significant exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuations, as most of its purchases from third party suppliers are settled in United States
(“US”) dollar which is pegged to the Hong Kong dollar exchange rate, and the Group’s
revenue from sales of goods and services rendered in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC are
collected primarily in US dollar.
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Although the Group received renminbi income from sales in the PRC, the renminbi income
was used to meet working capital commitments in the PRC.

Final dividend

On 18 June, 2002, the Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.005 per
Share for the financial year ended 31 March, 2002 (2001: Nil).

Subject to the approval of Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the dividend
will be paid to Shareholders whose names appeared on the register of members of the Company
on 30 July, 2002 (Tuesday).

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 25 July, 2002 (Thursday) to 30
July, 2002 (Tuesday), both days inclusive during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for the final dividend payable on 5 August, 2002 (Monday), all
transfers accompanied by the relevant Share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar, Central Registration Hong Kong Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:00 p.m. on 24 July,
2002 (Wednesday).

Employees

The Group has developed its human resources policies and procedures based on performance
and merit. The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are competitive and employees
are rewarded on a performance-related basis within the general framework of the Group’s
salary and bonus system.

Share options may be granted to Directors and employees of the Group to subscribe for shares
in the Company in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Share Option Schemes
approved by a resolution in writing passed by all shareholders of the Company on 13 December,
2000.

Significant investments held and material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries

In June 2001, the Group established a wholly-owned subsidiary in Shenzhen, namely, Soluteck
Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. However, after detailed consideration of the operating results
and for business interests, the Group sold 81 per cent. of its interest in the subsidiary in
December 2001 to an independent third party.

Except for the remaining 19 per cent. investment holding in Soluteck Technology (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd., there was no other significant investments or disposals of subsidiaries during the
year under review.

Purchase, sale or redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its Shares during the financial year ended 31 March,
2002. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased or sold any of the Shares
during the financial year ended 31 March, 2002.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

GROUP REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 10 August, 2000 as an exempted
Company with limited liability under the Companies Law (2000 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands.

On 13 December, 2000, pursuant to a Group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) in preparation
for the listing of the shares of the Company on GEM, the Company acquired the entire issued
share capital of Soluteck (BVI) Holdings Limited through a share swap and became the
holding company of the Group. Details of the Reorganisation are set out in the Prospectus.

The Reorganisation has been reflected in the accounts by regarding the Company as having
been the holding company of the Group from the beginning of the earliest period presented,
except for Task Consultants Limited which was acquired by the Group on 1 September, 2000.
The basis of preparation for these accounts is set out in note 1 to the accounts.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of the subsidiaries
and associated company are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the accounts.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the financial year by business and geographical
segments is set out in note 3 to the accounts.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the financial year are set out in the consolidated profit and loss
account on page 28.

No interim dividend have been paid or declared by the Company during the financial year.
The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.005 per Share (2001:
HK$Nil).

The details of dividends declared and paid prior to the Reorganisation are set out in note 8 to
the accounts.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the financial year are set out
in note 24 to the accounts.

DONATIONS

Charitable donation made by the Group during the financial year amounted to HK$Nil (2001:
HK$650,000).
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are set out in note 13 to the accounts.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital are set out in note 23 to the accounts.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March, 2002 amounted to HK$3.7 million
(2001: HK$ Nil). Under Section 34 of the Companies Law (2000 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium is available for distribution to Shareholders subject to the provisions
of the articles of association of the Company, and no distribution may be paid to Shareholders
out of the share premium unless the Company shall be able to pay its debt as they fall due in

the ordinary course of business.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years, which is presented by regarding the Company as having been the holding
company of the Group from the earliest period presented, is set out on page 57.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company had not redeemed any of its Shares during the financial year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased or sold any of the Shares during the financial
year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 March, 2002 are set out in note 14 on
page 46.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this announcement were:–

Mr. Chung Lok Fai
Ms. Chung Yuk Hung, Yvonne
Mr. Chung Yuk Man, Kevin
Mr. Hou Hsiao Bing
Mr. Hou Hsiao Wen, Eddie
Mr. Ho Wai Wing, Raymond*
Ms. Lui Ming, Rosita*
Mr. Tam Wing Chit, Tom

* Independent non-executive Directors
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In accordance with Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Chung Yuk
Man, Kevin and Mr. Tam Wing Chit, Tom retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting but, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. Ho Wai Wing, Raymond and Ms. Lui Ming, Rosita are independent non-executive Directors
and were appointed for a term of two years expiring on 30 November, 2002.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Messrs. Mr. Chung Lok Fai, Mr. Hou Hsiao Wen, Eddie, Mr. Chung Yuk Man, Kevin
and Mr. Hou Hsiao Bing and Ms. Chung Yuk Hung, Yvonne, all being executive Directors, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from 1 December, 2000 with an aggregate basic annual salaries of HK$5,900,000. The respective
basic salary of these Executive Directors will be subject to an annual increment after 31
March, 2002 at the discretion of the Directors. In addition, the executive Directors are also
entitled, on completion of every 12 months of service, to a discretionary management bonus
provided that the aggregate amount of the bonuses payable to all the executive Directors for
any financial year of the Company may not exceed 15 per cent. of the audited combined
profits attributable to shareholders of the Company (after payment of such management bonuses)
in respect of that financial year of the Company.

Tam Wing Chit, Tom (“Mr. Tam”), being an executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with Task Consultants for an initial term of two years commencing from 1 October,
2000. Mr. Tam is entitled to an annual salary of HK$1,000,000 and a management bonus of
HK$200,000 on completion of every 12 months of service. In addition, Mr. Tam is also
entitled to a performance bonus calculated by reference to the net profits (“Net Profits”)
before taxation and minority interest and the payment of such performance bonus but excluding
extraordinary and exceptional items of Task Consultants for every 12 month period ending on
30 September, during the term. The aggregate performance bonuses to which Mr. Tam and
other Directors of Task Consultants are entitled shall be 30 per cent. of the Net Profits or if
the Net Profits shall fall below HK$5,300,000, 10 per cent. of the Net Profits, provided that
the amount of such performance bonuses shall not in any event exceed the amount of the net
cash inflow from the operating activities of Task Consultants during the financial year. Both
the management bonus and the performance bonuses shall be satisfied by the allotment and
issue to Mr. Tam such number of shares (rounded down to the nearest whole number of
shares) as shall equal to HK$200,000 and the applicable amount of performance bonus,
respectively, divided by the offer price for each share of HK$0.4 as disclosed in the Prospectus,
provided that the aggregate number of shares allotted and issued and falling to be allotted and
issued to Mr. Tam in satisfaction of the performance bonus shall not exceed two per cent. of
the then issued shares.

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term expiring on 30
November, 2002. Save for Directors’ fees, none of the independent non-executive Directors is
expected to receive any other remuneration for holding their office as an independent non-
executive Director.

Save as disclosed herein, there are no existing or proposed service contracts with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2002, the Group has entered into the following
connected transactions which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules:–

Financial year ended 31 March,
2002 2001

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Rental paid to a Director (1) – 300
Consultancy fees paid to related companies (2) – 562
Receipt of consultancy income from a related company (3) – 126
Rental paid to the related companies (4) 659 600
Management and performance bonus paid to

Mr. Tam and certain employees of Task Consultants (5) 1,045 –

(1) The Group leased two office premises from Mr. Hou Hsiao Bing, an executive Director of the
Company, in Guangzhou and Chengdu of the PRC for the Group’s use.

(2) Pretty City Limited (“PCL”), Lucky Red Limited (“LRL”) and Burble International Co. (“BIC”)
provided marketing consultancy services to the Group in respect of its operation in the PRC for

monthly or yearly fixed fee in accordance with the terms of the underlying agreements. PCL is

owned by Mr. Hou Chung, Ms. Chung Po Chu, Mr. Hou Hsiao Bing and Mr. Hou Hsiao Wen,
Eddie. LRL is owned by Ms. Chung Yuk Hung, Yvonne and her husband. BIC is wholly owned

by Mr. Hou Hsiao Wen, Eddie. Mr. Hou Hsiao Bing, Mr. Hou Hsiao Wen, Eddie and Ms. Chung
Yuk Hung, Yvonne are the Directors and shareholders of the Company. Mr. Hou Chung and Ms.

Chung Po Chu are the shareholders of the Company.

(3) The Group received consultancy income from Everscience Information System Co. Limited in

which Mr. Tam Wing Chit, Tom is a Director and has equity interests.

(4) The Group leased office premises from San Yee Investment Limited (“San Yee”) and Dynatek

Limited (“Dynatek”) in Hong Kong of HK$600,000 (2001: HK$600,000) and from Ms. Tsou Lo
Nien and Ms. Chung Po Chu in Shanghai, the PRC of HK$59,000 (2001: HK$ Nil) for the

Group’s use. San Yee is owned by Mr. Chung and his wife, Ms. Tsou Lo Nien. Dynatek is owned

by Mr. Hou Chung and Ms. Chung Po Chu. Mr. Chung is the Director and shareholder of the
Company. Ms. Tsou Lo Nien is the shareholder of the Company.

(5) Pursuant to service contracts entered into between Task Consultants, Mr. Tam and certain
employees of Task Consultants on 18 October, 2000 for a term of two years commencing from 1
October, 2000, Mr. Tam and certain employees will be entitled to management bonuses of
HK$200,000 each and performance bonuses calculated by reference to the net profits of Task
Consultants for every twelve months’ period ending on 30 September, during the term. During
the year, the Group allotted and issued 2,612,072 shares to Mr. Tam and certain employees in
satisfaction of the management bonus, totalling HK$800,000, and performance bonus, totalling
HK$245,000, to which they are entitled pursuant to the service contracts.
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In the opinion of the Directors, the above connected transactions were carried out in the
ordinary course of business and in accordance with the terms of the underlying agreements.
The Directors confirm that transactions (1) to (3) above were discontinued after the listing of
the Shares on the GEM. The independent non-executive Directors confirm that they have
reviewed the implementation of the service contracts with Task Consultants and the lease
agreements between the Group and certain connected persons, and that the connected
transactions have been carried out in accordance with their respective terms.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ service contracts” and the above, there is
no other connected transactions.

The above transactions are also related party transactions as disclosed in the notes to the
accounts.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this announcement, no contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company, its subsidiaries, associated company or holding companies
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the financial year or at any time during the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES AND OPTIONS

(i) Shares

As at 31 March, 2002, the interests of the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company in the share capital of the Company pursuant to section 29 of the Hong Kong
Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (the “SDI Ordinance”) were as follows:–

Number of shares
Personal Family Corporate Other Total

Name of Director interests interests interests interests interests

Mr. Chung Lok Fai (“Mr. Chung”) – 19,500,000 262,500,000 – 282,000,000
(Note 1) (Note 2)

Ms. Chung Yuk Hung, Yvonne – – – – –
(Note 2) (Note 2)

Mr. Chung Yuk Man, Kevin – – – – –
(Note 2) (Note 2)

Mr. Tam Wing Chit, Tom 11,768,018 – – – 11,768,018
(Note 3) (Note 3)

Notes: –

1. These Shares were held by Ms. Tsou Lo Nien, the spouse of Mr. Chung.
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2. These Shares were registered in the name of Innovative Tech Worldwide Inc. (“ITW”), a

company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The issued share capital of ITW is
owned by the following persons:

Number Percentage of
Name of shareholders  of shares shareholding

Dynatek Limited (“Dynatek”) (a) 25.5 34.0

Mr. Chung (b) 15.3 20.4

Ms. Tsou Lo Nien (b) 12.0 16.0
Mr. Hou Chung (c) 12.0 16.0

Ms. Chung Yuk Hung, Yvonne (d) 5.1 6.8

Mr. Chung Yuk Man, Kevin (e) 5.1 6.8

Total 75.0 100.0

(a) Dynatek is an investment holding company incorporated in Hong Kong with all of its

shares held by Mr. Hou Chung and Ms. Chung Po Chu, his spouse, in equal shares.
Dynatek Limited holds 25.5 shares issued by ITW, representing 34.0 per cent. of the

issued share capital of ITW. Accordingly, Dynatek is deemed, by virtue of the SDI

Ordinance, to be interested in the shares in which ITW is interested, amounting to
262,500,000 Shares. Dynatek, Mr. Hou Chung and Ms. Chung Po Chu are deemed to

be initial management shareholders (as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing

of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)). Ms.
Chung Po Chu is the sister of Mr. Chung. Ms. Chung Po Chu and Mr. Hou Chung are

parents of Mr. Hou Hsiao Bing and Mr. Hou Hsiao Wen, Eddie, both of whom are
executive Directors of the Company.

(b) Mr. Chung and his spouse, Ms. Tsou Lo Nien, own, in aggregate, 36.4 per cent. of the
issued share capital of ITW. Accordingly, each of Mr. Chung and Ms. Tsou Lo Nien is

deemed, by virtue of the SDI Ordinance, to be interested in the Shares in which ITW

is interested, amounting to 262,500,000 Shares. Mr. Chung is also deemed to be
interested in the 19,500,000 Shares registered in the name of Ms. Tsou Lo Nien. Mr.

Chung is an executive Director and Ms. Tsou Lo Nien is a Director of Truth Honour
Electronic Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. As a result, each of Mr. Chung and

Ms. Tsou Lo Nien is deemed, by virtue of the SDI Ordinance, to be interested in

282,000,000 Shares in aggregate, representing approximately 62.31 per cent. of the
Shares in issue. Mr. Chung and Ms. Tsou Lo Nien are deemed to be initial management

shareholders (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company.
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(c) Mr. Hou Chung, together with Dynatek, a company beneficially owned by him and his

spouse, Ms. Chung Po Chu is interested in 50.0 per cent. of the issued share capital of
ITW. Accordingly, Mr. Hou Chung is deemed, by virtue of the SDI Ordinance, to be

interested in all the Shares in which ITW is interested, amounting to 262,500,000

Shares. Together with the 8,000,000 Shares registered in his own name, Mr. Hou
Chung is deemed, by virtue of the SDI Ordinance, to be interested in 270,500,000

Shares in aggregate, representing approximately 59.76 per cent. of the Shares in
issue. Mr. Hou Chung is deemed to be an initial management shareholder (as defined

under the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company.

(d) Ms. Chung Yuk Hung, Yvonne is an executive Director. Ms. Chung Yuk Hung, Yvonne
holds 5.1 shares, representing 6.8 per cent. of the issued share capital of ITW.
Accordingly, Ms. Chung Yuk Hung, Yvonne has an attributable interest in 6.8 per
cent. of the Shares in which ITW is interested, amounting to 17,850,000 Shares. She
is deemed to be an initial management shareholder (as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules) of the Company.

(e) Mr. Chung Yuk Man, Kevin is an executive Director. Mr. Chung Yuk Man, Kevin
holds 5.1 shares, representing 6.8 per cent. of the issued share capital of ITW.
Accordingly, Mr. Chung Yuk Man, Kevin has an attributable interest in 6.8 per cent.
of the Shares in which ITW is interested, amounting to 17,850,000 Shares. He is
deemed to be an initial management shareholder (as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules) of the Company.

3. Mr. Tam’s shareholding in the Company as at 30 September, 2001 (being the date of the

Group’s previous interim report) was 11,115,000 shares. Pursuant to the new shares issued

by the Company to Mr. Tam for payment of the management bonus and the performance
bonus, particulars of which are set forth in this announcement and the Company’s

announcement dated 28 December, 2001, Mr. Tam’s shareholding in  the Company has
been increased to 11,768,018 shares.

(ii) Directors’ rights to acquire Shares

On 13 December, 2000, the shareholders of the Company approved and adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors
may, at their discretion, grant to any employees of the Group, including executive Directors,
options to subscribe for the Shares. The subscription price for options granted under the
Share Option Scheme after the listing of the Shares on the GEM is determined by the
Directors and will not be less than the higher of the closing price of the Shares on GEM
on the date of grant of the options or the average of the closing price of the Shares on
GEM for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the options. As
regards the options granted before the listing of the Shares on the GEM (the “Pre-IPO
Share Options”), the subscription price is to be determined by Directors and shall not be
less than the nominal value of the Shares. The maximum number of Shares in which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme may not exceed 30 per cent. of
the ordinary share capital in issue from time to time. The maximum option term is ten
years from the respective grant dates. Options may be exercised at any time during a
period, generally three years but not later than ten years, to be determined and notified to
each grantee.
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Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Options granted under the above Share Option Scheme,
certain Directors have interests in options to subscribe for Shares as set forth below. The
options have a duration of 10 years from the date on which the offer of grant was made.

Number of
share options

Exercise outstanding Expiry
Name of Director Date of grant price as at 31.3.2002 date

HK$

Mr. Chung 18/12/2000 0.4 2,000,000 17/12/2010
Ms. Chung Yuk Hung, Yvonne 18/12/2000 0.4 2,000,000 17/12/2010
Mr. Chung Yuk Man, Kevin 18/12/2000 0.4 2,000,000 17/12/2010
Mr. Hou Hsiao Wen, Eddie 18/12/2000 0.4 2,000,000 17/12/2010
Mr. Hou Hsiao Bing 18/12/2000 0.4 2,000,000 17/12/2010

Notes: –

1. None of the above outstanding options was exercised during the financial year.

2. Pursuant to the offer letters in respect of the grant of the Pre-IPO Share Options, the
grantees can only exercise the options to the extent of an aggregate total of 25 per cent., 50
per cent., 75 per cent. and 100 per cent. of the Pre-IPO Share Options in each of the first to
fourth anniversaries of the commencement of the trading of the shares on GEM, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the financial year ended 31 March, 2002, was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate and neither the Directors nor the chief executive, nor any of their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such right.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Directors nor the chief executive, nor any of their associates,
had any interests in any securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations (as
defined by the SDI Ordinance) as at 31 March, 2002.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY
As at 31 March, 2002, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance discloses the following persons as having an
interest of 10 per cent. or more of the issued shares:–

Approximate
percentage of

Name Notes Number of Shares issued Shares

ITW 1 262,500,000 58.00%
Dynatek 2 262,500,000 58.00%
Mr. Hou Chung 3 270,500,000 59.76%
Ms. Chung Po Chu 4 270,500,000 59.76%
Ms. Tsou Lo Nien 5 282,000,000 62.31%
Mr. Chung 5 282,000,000 62.31%

Notes: –

1. These Shares were registered in the name of ITW., a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. Please refer to note 2 to “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares and
Options” in (i) “Shares ” for details of the shareholding of ITW.

2. These Shares are registered in name of ITW of which Dynatek Limited holds 25.5 shares,
representing 34.0 per cent. of the issued share capital of ITW. Accordingly, Dynatek Limited is
deemed, by virtue of the SDI Ordinance, to be interested in all the Shares in which ITW is
interested. On this basis, Dynatek Limited is a substantial shareholder.

3. These Shares comprise 262,500,000 Shares registered in the name of ITW and 8,000,000 Shares
(following his disposal of 11,500,000 Shares in November 2001) registered in his name. Hou
Chung, together with Dynatek Limited, a company beneficially owned by him and his spouse,
Chung Po Chu, is interested in 50.0 per cent. of the issued share capital of ITW. Accordingly,
Hou Chung is deemed, by virtue of the SDI Ordinance, to be interested in all the Shares in which
ITW is interested. On this basis, Hou Chung is a substantial shareholder.

4. These Shares comprise 262,500,000 Shares registered in the name of ITW and 8,000,000 Shares
registered in the name of Hou Chung. Chung Po Chu is the sister of Mr. Chung. Chung Po Chu
and Hou Chung are the parents of Hou Hsiao Bing and Hou Hsiao Wen, Eddie, both of whom are
executive Directors. Being the spouse of Hou Chung, Chung Po Chu is deemed, by virtue of the
SDI Ordinance, to be interested in all the Shares in which Hou Chung is interested. On this
basis, Chung Po Chu is a substantial shareholder.

5. These Shares comprise 262,500,000 Shares registered in the name of ITW and 19,500,000 Shares
registered in the name of Tsou Lo Nien. Mr. Chung and his spouse, Tsou Lo Nien, own, in
aggregate, 36.4 per cent. of the issued share capital of ITW. Accordingly, each of Mr. Chung and
Tsou Lo Nien is deemed, by virtue of the SDI Ordinance, to be interested in the Shares in which
ITW is interested. Mr. Chung is an executive Director and Tsou Lo Nien is a Director of Truth
Honour Electronic Limited. On this basis, each of Mr. Chung and Tsou Lo Nien is a substantial
shareholder.
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6. Assuming the Pre-IPO Share Options are not exercised.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any other interests representing
10 per cent. or more of the Company’s issued share capital as at 31 March, 2002.

SPONSOR’S INTEREST

Pursuant to the agreement dated 21 December, 2000 entered into between the Company and
DBS Asia Capital Limited (“DBS Asia”), DBS Asia is entitled to receive a fee in respect of
the appointment by the Company as the sponsor of the Company as required under the GEM
Listing Rules for the period from 3 January, 2001 to 31 March, 2003.

At 31 March, 2002, neither DBS Asia, its directors, employees nor their associates, had any
interest in any securities of the Company or any of its associated corporation.

DETAILS OF SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY

Save as the Pre-IPO Share Options granted under the Share Option Scheme, no other share
options have been granted thereunder.

A summary of the principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Options granted under the Share
Option Scheme were disclosed in the Prospectus and the movements thereof are set out
below:–

MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS

As at As at
1 April,  31 March, No. of

2001 2002 new shares
No. of No. of arising

Pre-IPO Share Options Options Granted Exercised Cancelled Options therefrom

Exercise price:
HK$0.20
– Director of a subsidiary:

Mr. Lam Shut Chun 500,000 Nil Nil Nil 500,000 Nil
– Other employees 9,150,000 Nil Nil (1,100,000) 8,050,000 Nil

Exercise price:
HK$0.40
– Executive Directors

Mr. Chung 2,000,000 Nil Nil Nil 2,000,000 Nil
Mr. Hou Hsiao Wen, Eddie 2,000,000 Nil Nil Nil 2,000,000 Nil
Mr. Hou Hsiao Bing 2,000,000 Nil Nil Nil 2,000,000 Nil
Ms. Chung Yuk Hung, Yvonne 2,000,000 Nil Nil Nil 2,000,000 Nil
Mr. Chung Yuk Man, Kevin 2,000,000 Nil Nil Nil 2,000,000 Nil

– Other employees 700,000 Nil Nil (200,000) 500,000 Nil

20,350,000 Nil Nil (1,300,000) 19,050,000 Nil

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2002, 1,300,000 shares options were lapsed upon
the resignation of the relevant employees of the Group.



– 25 –

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS
Details of the retirement benefit costs are set out in note 11 to the account.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the Group’s major suppliers
and customers are as follows:–

Purchases

• the largest supplier: Approximately 93 per cent.

• five largest suppliers combined: Approximately 96  per cent.

Sales

• the largest customer: Approximately 29 per cent.

• five largest customers combined: Approximately 86 per cent.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5 per cent. of the Company’s share capital) had interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

BOARD PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES
The Company has complied with Board Practices and Procedures as set out in Rules 5.28 to
5.39 of the GEM Listing Rules since the shares of the Company listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange on 3 January, 2001.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of Association,
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company’s audit committee was formed on 13 December, 2000. The written terms of
reference which describe the authority and duties of the Audit Committee were prepared and
adopted with Reference to “A Guide for The Formation of An Audit Committee” published by
the Hong Kong Society of Accountants.

The audit committee of the Board provides an important link between the Board and the
Company’s auditors in matters coming within the scope of the Group audit. It also reviews the
effectiveness both of the external and internal audit and of internal controls and risks evaluation.
The Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Lui Ming,
Rosita and Mr. Ho Wai Wing, Raymond. Four Meetings were held during the current financial
year. This announcement has been reviewed and approved by the audit committee of the
Board.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the Directors or management shareholders (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of
the Company has an interest in a business which compete or may compete with the business
of the Group.
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DISCLOSURE OF TRADING BALANCE ARISING FROM SALES TRANSACTIONS
CONDUCTED BY THE GROUP IN ITS ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS

The following disclosure is made in accordance with the requirements under Rules 17.15 and
17.22 of the GEM Listing Rules:

(a) As at 1 April, 2001, an amount of approximately HK$10.7 million was due from �� 
�� !"#$%"#(Shanghai SITICO International Trading Co., Pudong Inc.*)
(“Shanghai SITICO”), a customer of the Group and a third party independent of any of
the Directors, the chief executive of the Company and its subsidiaries, the substantial
shareholders (within the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company and their
respective associates (within the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules). Such amount
represented the outstanding balance of certain sales transactions entered into by the
Group since the end of year 2000 in its ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms.

Following completion of installation and testing of all relevant equipment in late June
2001, the amount due was fully settled by Shanghai SITICO on 26 July, 2001 in accordance
with the relevant terms of the sales transactions. As the sales transactions were conducted
in the ordinary course of business of the Group, no interest was accrued on the amount
due and Shanghai SITICO gave no collateral under the sales transactions.

The amount due from Shanghai SITICO is regarded as an advance by the Company to an
entity under Rule 17.15 of the GEM Listing Rules. As at 31 March, 2001, the amount due
from Shanghai SITICO of approximately HK$10.7 million represented approximately
28.6 per cent. of the audited consolidated net tangible assets of the Group of approximately
HK$37.41 million as at 31 March, 2001.

(b) As at 15 November, 2001, Shanghai SITICO, a customer of the Group and an Independent
Third Party had a trading balance with the Group of approximately US$1.50 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$11.67 million). Such trading balance was resulted from
sales to Shanghai SITICO by the Group in its ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms, and represented approximately 31.2 per cent. of the net tangible assets
(within the meaning of note 2 to Rule 17.14 of the GEM Listing Rules) of the Group of
approximately HK$37.41 million as at 31 March, 2001.

The above-mentioned trading balance was unsecured and repayable in accordance with
the credit terms as agreed with Shanghai SITICO. As at 31 March, 2002, Shanghai
SITICO settled approximately US$1.05 million (equivalent to approximately HK$8.20
million) in accordance with the relevant terms of the sales transactions. As at 31 March,
2002, the trading balance with Shanghai SITICO was approximately US$0.45 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$3.50 million). The trading balance has been fully settled
on 12 April, 2002, No collateral is required to be made by Shanghai SITICO and no
interest is charged on any of such balances.

(c) As at 15 November, 2001, Bank of Communications, a customer of the Group and an
Independent Third Party, had a trading balance with the Group of approximately RMB12.93
million (equivalent to approximately HK$12.20 million) representing approximately 32.61
per cent. of the net tangible assets (within the meaning of note 2 to Rule 17.14 of the
GEM Listing Rules) of the Group of approximately HK$37.41 million as at 31 March,
2001. As at 23 November, 2001, the trading balance with Bank of Communications
increases to approximately RMB22.42 million (equivalent to approximately HK$21.15
million) representing approximately 56.54 per cent. of the net tangible assets (within the
meaning of note 2 to Rule 17.14 of the GEM Listing Rules) of the Group of approximately
HK$37.41 million as at 31 March, 2001. Such aggregate trading balance was resulted
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from sales to Bank of Communications by the Group in its ordinary course of business
and on normal commercial terms.

The above-mentioned aggregate trading balance is unsecured and repayable in accordance
with the credit terms as agreed with the relevant customer. As at 31 March, 2002, Bank
of Communications settled approximately RMB21.36 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$20.15 million) in accordance with the relevant terms of the sales transactions. As at
31 March, 2002, the trading balance with Bank of Communications was approximately
RMB1.06 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1.00 million). No collateral is required
to be made by Bank of Communications and no interest is charged on the trading balance.

The Directors confirm that apart from the amount disclosed herein, the Group does not
make any advancement to any entity that required to be disclosed under Rules 17.15 and
17.22 of the GEM Listing Rules.

ISSUE OF NEW SHARES IN SATISFACTION OF MANAGEMENT BONUS AND
PERFORMANCE BONUS PAYABLE TO A DIRECTOR AND CERTAIN EMPLOYEES
OF TASK CONSULTANTS LIMITED (“TASK CONSULTANTS”)

Introduction
The Board approved on 28 December, 2001 an issue of an aggregate of 2,612,072 new Shares,
representing approximately 0.58 per cent. of the enlarged issued share capital of the Company,
by way of exercising a specific mandate given to the Directors as disclosed in the Prospectus.
Such issue of new shares was used in satisfaction of the management bonus and the performance
bonus payable to Mr. Tam Wing Chit, Tom (“Mr. Tam”), an executive Director, and certain
employees of Task Consultants. Details of the number of shares and the basis of calculation
were set forth in the Company’s announcement dated 28 December, 2001.

Total number of new shares issued in satisfaction of the management bonus and the
performance bonus

The total number of new shares issued by the Company in satisfaction of the management
bonus and the performance bonus are set forth below:–

Name Management bonus Performance bonus Total number of
(Number of new Shares) (Number of new Shares) new Shares issued

Mr. Tam 500,000 Shares 153,018 Shares 653,018 Shares

Chan Shu Tak, Alex 500,000 Shares 153,018 Shares 653,018 Shares

Shiu Chi Shing, Kelvin 500,000 Shares 153,018 Shares 653,018 Shares

Yu Chak Fai, Stanley 500,000 Shares 153,018 Shares 653,018 Shares

Total 2,000,000 Shares 612,072 Shares 2,612,072 Shares

AUDITORS

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Chung Lok Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 June, 2002
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2002
2002 2001

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 3 208,001 303,391
Cost of sales (155,541) (238,407)

Gross profit 52,460 64,984
Other revenue 3 660 2,699
Selling expenses (11,933) (9,275)
Administrative expenses (31,889) (28,802)

Profit from operation 4 9,298 29,606
Finance costs 5 (116) (94)
Share of results of an associated company 15 – –

Profit before taxation 9,182 29,512
Taxation 6 (1,132) (5,419)

Profit attributable to shareholders 7 8,050 24,093

Dividends 8 2,263 30,000

Basic earnings per share 9 1.79 cents 5.94 cents
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH, 2002

2002 2001
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 404 –
FIXED ASSETS 13 1,626 2,356
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 17 7,629 2,150
Accounts receivable 18 40,205 48,774
Bills receivable 7,274 1,401
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 3,840 4,641
Pledge bank deposits 26 7,000 9,000
Bank balances and cash 20 32,792 22,521

98,740 88,487

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 19 23,745 18,507
Other payables and accrued charges 4,432 7,112
Receipt in advance 1(c) 20,622 26,632
Taxation 21 383 1,185
Bank loans, secured 26 5,084 –

54,266 53,436

NET CURRENT ASSETS 44,474 35,051

46,504 37,407

Financed by:
Share capital 23 45,261 45,000
Reserves 24(a) (1,111) (7,684)
Proposed final dividend 24(a) 2,263 –

Shareholders’ funds 46,413 37,316
Deferred taxation 22 91 91

46,504 37,407

On behalf of the Board

CHUNG LOK FAI CHUNG YUK HUNG, YVONNE
Director Director
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BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH, 2002
2002 2001

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 49,289 43,487

CURRENT ASSETS
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 14 600
Bank balances and cash 14 14

28 614

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accrued charges 350 369

NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (322) 245

48,967 43,732

Financed by:
Share capital 23 45,261 45,000
Reserves 24(b) 1,443 (1,268)
Proposed final dividend 24(b) 2,263 –

48,967 43,732

On behalf of the Board

CHUNG LOK FAI CHUNG YUK HUNG, YVONNE
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2002
2002 2001

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 25(a) 5,791 (1,995)

RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND
SERVICING OF FINANCE
Interest received 660 2,699
Interest paid (116) (94)
Dividends paid to the then shareholders – (30,000)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from returns on
investments and servicing of finance 544 (27,395)

TAXATION
Hong Kong profits tax paid (1,568) (5,585)
Overseas taxation paid (366) (309)

Total taxation paid (1,934) (5,894)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (870) (2,162)
Payment for software development costs (404) –
Purchase of a subsidiary – 573
Disposal of a subsidiary 25(c) 60 –
Sale of fixed assets – 40
Decrease/ (increase) in pledged bank deposits 26 2,000 (9,000)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities 786 (10,549)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing 5,187 (45,833)

FINANCING
Proceeds from issue of shares – 24,000
Placing and listing expenses – (6,416)
New bank loan raised 5,084 1,884
Repayment of amounts borrowed – (1,884)

Net cash inflow from financing 25(b) 5,084 17,584

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 10,271 (28,249)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 22,521 50,770

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 32,792 22,521

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash 20 32,792 22,521
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED GAIN AND LOSSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2002
2002 2001

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Exchange differences arising on the translation
of the accounts of the subsidiaries not
recognised in the profit and loss account 24(a) 2 2

Profit for the year 8,050 24,093

Total recognised gains 8,052 24,095

Capital reserves arising from acquisition of
a subsidiary – 2,228

8,052 26,323

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 Group reorganisation and basis of preparation

(a) The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 10 August, 2000 as an exempted
Company with limited liability under the Companies Law (2000 Revision) of the Cayman

Islands.

(b) On 13 December, 2000, pursuant to a Group Reorganisation (“Reorganisation”) in preparation

for the listing of the shares of the Company on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company acquired

the entire issued share capital of Soluteck (BVI) Holdings Limited (“Soluteck (BVI)”)

through a share swap and became the holding company of the Group. Details of the
Reorganisation are set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 22 December, 2000.

(c) The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 3 January, 2001.

(d) The Reorganisation is accounted for using merger accounting as permitted by the Hong
Kong Statement of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP”) 2.127 “Accounting for group

reconstructions”, except for Task Consultants Limited (“Task Consultants”) which was

acquired by the Group on 1 September, 2000 and was accounted for using acquisition
accounting. The consolidated accounts of the Group for the year ended 31 March, 2001 are

prepared as if the company had been the holding company of the Group from the beginning
of the earliest period presented.

(e) The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply with accounting

standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (“HKSA”).
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In the current year, the Group adopted the following Statements of Standard Accounting
Practice (“SSAPs”) issued by the HKSA which are effective for accounting periods
commencing on or after 1 January, 2001:

SSAP 9 (revised) : Events after the balance sheet date
SSAP 14 (revised) : Leases (effective for periods commencing on or after 1 July, 2000)
SSAP 26 : Segment reporting
SSAP 28 : Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
SSAP 29 : Intangible assets
SSAP 30 : Business combinations
SSAP 31 : Impairment of assets
SSAP 32 : Consolidated financial statements and accounting for investments

in subsidiaries

The effect of adopting these new standards is set out in the principal accounting policies
below.

2 Principal accounting policies

(a) Consolidation

(i) The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 March. The Reorganisation referred to in note 1 above has been
accounted for using merger accounting, except for Task Consultants which was acquired
by the Group on 1 September, 2000 and was accounted for using acquisition accounting,
by regarding the Company as being the holding company of the Group from the
beginning of the earliest period presented.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated
on consolidation.

(ii) Subsidiaries are companies in which the Company, directly or indirectly, controls
more than half of the voting power or issued share capital or controls the composition
of the board of directors.

(iii) In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision, if necessary, for any diminution in value other than temporary in nature.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

(b) Associated company

An associated company is a company, not being a subsidiary, in which an equity interest is
held for long-term and significant influence is exercised in its management.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group’s share of the results of
associated companies for the year, and the consolidated balance sheet includes the Group’s
share of the net assets of the associated companies.

Equity accounting is discontinued when the carrying amount of the investment in an
associated company reaches zero, unless the Group has incurred obligations or guaranteed
obligations in respect of the associated company.
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(c) Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and title has passed.

Revenue from the provision of technical support services is recognised when the services
are rendered. The unrealised portion is dealt with as receipt in advance when deposits and
instalments are received.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal
amounts outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

(d) Fixed assets

Fixed assets, comprising leasehold improvements, office equipment, furniture and fixtures
and motor vehicles, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less accumulated
impairment losses over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Improvements are capitalised and depreciated over their expected useful lives to the Group.

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources of information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication that assets included in fixed assets are impaired. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.
Such impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss except where the asset is
carried at valuation and the impairment loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for
that same asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation decrease.

The gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the profit and
loss account. Any revaluation reserve balance remaining attributable to the relevant asset is
transferred to retained earnings and is shown as a movement in reserves.

(e) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, calculated on the
first-in, first-out basis, comprises cost of purchase. Net realisable value is determined on
the basis of anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

(f) Accounts receivable

Provision is made against accounts receivable to the extent they are considered to be
doubtful. Accounts receivable in the balance sheet are stated net of such provision.
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(g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of the
cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call
with banks and cash investments with a maturity of three months or less from date of
investment.

(h) Provisions

In accordance with SSAP 28, provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can
be made. Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.

(i) Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the accounts. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then
be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not
wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the accounts when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

(j) Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current taxation rate in respect of timing differences
between profit as computed for taxation purposes and profit as stated in the accounts to the
extent that a liability or an asset is expected to be payable or recoverable in the foreseeable
future.

(k) Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with the
leasing company are accounted for as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the leasing company are charged to the profit
and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.

In note 27(b) to the accounts the Group has disclosed operating lease commitment under
the revised SSAP 14 which requires the disclosure of the aggregate future minimum lease
payments. This is a change from the previous SSAP 14 which only required disclosure of
the minimum lease payments payable in the next twelve months.
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(l) Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill/negative goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary and associated company at
the date of acquisition.

In accordance with SSAP 30, goodwill on acquisition occurring on or after 1 January,
2001 is included in intangible assets and is amortised using the straight-line method
over its estimated useful life.

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the Group’s share of the
net assets acquired over the cost of acquisition.

For acquisitions after 1 January, 2001, negative goodwill is presented in the same
balance sheet classification as goodwill. To the extent that negative goodwill relates
to expectations of future losses and expenses that are identified in the Group’s plan
for the acquisition and can be measured reliably, but which do not represent identifiable
liabilities at the date of acquisition, that portion of negative goodwill is recognised in
the income statement when the future losses and expenses are recognised. Any
remaining negative goodwill, not exceeding the fair values of the non-monetary assets
acquired, is recognised in the income statement over the remaining weighted average
useful life of those assets; negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of those non-
monetary assets is recognised in the income statement immediately.

For acquisition prior to 1 January, 2001, negative goodwill was taken directly to
capital reserve on acquisition. The Group has taken advantage of the transitional
provisions in SSAP 30 and such negative goodwill has not been restated.

The gain or loss on disposal of an entity includes the unamortised balance of goodwill
relating to the entity disposed of or, for pre 1 January, 2001 acquisition, the related
goodwill written off against reserves to the extent it has not previously been realised
in the profit and loss account.

(ii) Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects
relating to the design and testing of new or improved products are recognised as an
intangible asset where the technical feasibility and intention of completing the product
under development has been demonstrated and the resources are available to do so,
costs are identifiable and there is an ability to sell or use the asset that will generate
probable future economic benefits. Such development costs are recognised as an asset
and amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of not more than 5 years to reflect
the pattern in which the related economic benefits are recognised. Development costs
that do not meet the above criteria are expensed as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.

(iii) Impairment of intangible assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of any intangible
asset, including goodwill previously written off against reserves, is assessed and
written down immediately to its recoverable amount.
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(m) Investments in securities

Investment securities are stated at cost less any provision for impairment losses.

The carrying amounts of individual investments are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
assess whether the fair values have declined below the carrying amounts. When a decline
other than temporary has occurred, the carrying amount of such securities will be reduced
to its fair value. The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the profit and loss
account. This impairment loss is written back to profit and loss when the circumstances
and events that led to the writ-downs or write-offs cease to exist and there is persuasive
evidence that the new circumstances and events will persist for the foreseeable future.

(n) Retirement benefit costs

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement scheme are expensed as
incurred. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

(o) Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at exchanged rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies at the balance sheet
date are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising in these cases are dealt with in the profit and loss account.

The accounts of subsidiaries expressed in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are dealt with as a movement
in reserves.

(p) Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting the Group has determined that
business segments be presented as the primary reporting format and geographical as the
secondary reporting format.

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses. Segment assets consist primarily of
intangible assets, fixed assets, inventories, receivables and operating cash. Segment liabilities
comprise operating liabilities and exclude items such as taxation and certain corporate
borrowings. Capital expenditure comprises additions to intangible assets (note 12) and
fixed assets (note 13).

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales are based on the country in which the
customer is located. Total assets and capital expenditure are where the assets are located.

No geographical analysis is provided as less than 10 percent. of the consolidated turnover
and less than 10 percent. of the profit from operation of the Group are attributable to
markets outside the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

(q) Dividends

In accordance with the revised SSAP 9, the Group no longer recognises dividends proposed
or declared after the balance sheet date as a liability at the balance sheet date.
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3 Revenue, turnover and segment information

The Group is principally engaged in the sale of electronic banking systems, other banking
equipment and mailing systems, and the provision of hardware and software technical support
services. Revenues recognised during the year are as follows:

Group
2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover
Sales of goods 165,823 263,697
Rendering of services 42,178 39,694

208,001 303,391

Other revenue
Interest income 660 2,699

208,661 306,090
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Primary reporting format - business segments

Sales of Rendering
goods of service Group
2002 2002 2002

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 165,823 42,178 208,001

Segment results 11,432 28,724 40,156

Other revenue 660
Unallocated cost (31,518)

Profit from operation 9,298
Finance costs (116)
Share of results of an associated company –

Profit before taxation 9,182
Taxation (1,132)

Profit attributable to shareholders 8,050

Segment assets 43,803 16,849 60,652
Associated company –
Unallocated assets 40,118

Total assets 100,770

Segment liabilities 19,969 19,000 38,969
Unallocated liabilities 15,388

Total liabilities 54,357

Capital expenditure – 1,054 1,054
Unallocated capital expenditure 220

1,274

Depreciation – 390 390
Unallocated depreciation 748

1,138

Other non-cash expenses 1,045
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Primary reporting format - business segments

Sales of Rendering
goods of service Group
2001 2001 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 263,697 39,694 303,391

Segment results 35,610 19,882 55,492

Other revenue 2,699
Unallocated cost (28,585)

Profit from operation 29,606
Finance costs (94)
Share of results of an associated company –

Profit before taxation 29,512
Taxation (5,419)

Profit attributable to shareholders 24,093

Segment assets 41,032 14,377 55,409
Associated company –
Unallocated assets 35,434

Total assets 90,843

Segment liabilities 14,232 24,962 39,194
Unallocated liabilities 14,333

Total liabilities 53,527

Capital expenditure – 1,262 1,262
Unallocated capital expenditure 1,430

2,692

Depreciation – 217 217
Unallocated depreciation 702

919

Other non-cash expenses 1
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4 Profit from operation

Profit from operation is stated after crediting and charging the following:

Group
2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000

Crediting

Net exchange gain 7 –

Charging

Auditors’ remuneration 393 609
Cost of inventories 134,680 213,222
Depreciation 1,138 920
Loss on disposal of fixed assets – 34
Net exchange loss – 41
Operating leases for land and building 1,675 1,641
Provision for bad and doubtful debt 1,934 –
Research and development costs 1,859 1,389
Retirement benefit costs (note 11) 590 264
Staff cost (including Directors emoluments) 28,231 24,103

5 Finance costs

Group
2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000

Interest on bank loan 116 94

6 Taxation

Group
2002 2001

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Hong Kong profits tax
– current (a) 1,210 5,419
– over provision in prior years (628) (319)
Overseas taxation (b) 550 319

1,132 5,419

Notes:

(a) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16 per cent. on the respective
estimated assessable profits of companies within the Group operating in Hong Kong during
the year.

(b) Overseas taxation represented tax charges on the assessable profits of subsidiaries operating
in the PRC calculated at the applicable rates.

(c) There was no material unprovided deferred taxation liabilities for the current year.



– 42 –

7 Profit attributable to shareholders

The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the accounts of the Company to the extent
of HK$4,190,000 (2001: loss of HK$1,678,000).

8 Dividends

Group
2002 2001

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Interim, paid, by subsidiaries to their then
shareholders before group reorganisation (a) – 30,000

Final, proposed of HK$0.005 (2001: Nil) per
ordinary share (b) 2,263 –

2,263 30,000

(a) The dividend rates and the number of share ranking for the dividends are not presented as
such information, for the purposes of this report, is not considered meaningful.

(b) At a meeting held on 18 June, 2002 the directors declared a final dividend of 0.5 cents per
ordinary share. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these
accounts, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended
31 March, 2002.

9 Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the Group’s profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$8,050,000 (2001: HK$24,093,000) and the weighted average of 450,672,698
(2001: 405,287,671) shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the year is not presented as there is no material dilution effect
arising from the outstanding options issued by the Company.
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10 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Emoluments of the Directors of the Company during the year are as follows:

2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000

Independent non-executive Directors
Fees – –
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 120 30

Executive directors
Fees – –
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,809 4,917
Discretionary bonuses – 1,630
Contributions to pensions schemes 60 18

4,989 6,595

The executive Directors received individual emoluments for the year ended 31 March,
2002 of approximately HK$1,110,999 (2001: HK$2,024,000), HK$681,999 (2001:
HK$1,044,500), HK$681,999 (2001: HK$1,047,500), HK$681,999 (2001: HK$1,251,500),
HK$438,999 (2001: HK$645,500) and HK$1,273,203 (2001: HK$552,000) respectively.

In last year, 10,000,000 options were granted to the Directors under the Share Option
Scheme of Pre-IPO Share Options adopted by a resolution in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 13 December, 2000. Each of the options entities the
holder to subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$0.1 each in the Company at HK$0.4 each,
and are only exercisable by the grantees thereof to the extent of an aggregate total of 25 per
cent., 50 per cent., 75 per cent. and 100 per cent. of the Pre-IPO Share Options in each of
the first to fourth anniversaries of the commencement of the trading of the Shares on
Growth Market Enterprise of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM”)
respectively. The options have a duration of 10 years from the date on which the offer of
grant was made.
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(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year include
two (2001: two) Directors whose emoluments have been disclosed in the preceding paragraph.
The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2001: three) individuals during the year
are as follows:

2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,784 3,146
Discretionary bonuses – 690

3,784 3,836

The emoluments fell with the following bands

Emolument bands Number of individuals
2002 2001

HK$Nil – HK$1,000,000 – –
HK$1,000,001 – HK$1,500,000 3 3

3 3

During the year ended 31 March, 2002, no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the
Directors and the five highest paid employees above as an inducement to joint the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2001:HK$Nil).

11 Retirement benefit costs

With effect from 1 December, 2000, the Group has set up a defined contribution retirement
scheme under the mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all the eligible
employees of the Group in Hong Kong.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to contribute 5 per cent. of their monthly
salaries up to maximum of HK$1,000 and they can choose to make additional contributions. The
employer’s monthly contributions are calculated at 5 per cent. of the employee’s monthly salaries
up to a maximum of HK$1,000 (the “mandatory contributions”). The employees are entitled to
100 per cent. of the employer’s mandatory contribution upon their retirement at the age of 65
years old, death or total incapacity.

The subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to participate in defined contribution retirement
scheme, organised by relevant local government authorities. The subsidiaries are required to
make contributions to the retirement schemes, at a rate of 11 per cent. to 22.5 per cent. of the
basic salary of their employees and there is no other future obligations to the Group.
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12 Intangible assets

Software development costs

2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1st April – –
Addition 404 –
Amortisation – –

At 31st March 404 –

13 Fixed assets

Group
Office

equipment,
Leasehold furniture Motor

improvements and fixtures vehicles Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost
At 1 April, 2001 977 5,159 340 6,476
Additions 208 662 – 870
Disposals (200) (316) – (516)

At 31 March, 2002 985 5,505 340 6,830

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April, 2001 640 3,208 272 4,120
Charge for the year 225 845 68 1,138
Disposals (29) (25) – (54)

At 31 March, 2002 836 4,028 340 5,204

Net book value
At 31 March, 2002 149 1,477 – 1,626

At 31 March, 2001 337 1,951 68 2,356
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14 Investment in subsidiaries – company

2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted investments, at cost 27,826 27,826
Amounts due from subsidiaries 21,463 15,661

49,289 43,487

The amount due from subsidiaries are interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The following is a list of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 March, 2002:

Place of Principal activities Particulars of issued Attributable
Incorporation/ and place of shares capital/ equity

Company establishment operation registered capital interest
%

Subsidiary held directly:

Soluteck (BVI) Holdings British Virgin Investment holding 1,000 ordinary 100
Limited Islands in Hong Kong shares of US$1 each

Subsidiaries held indirectly:

Mason Electronics Limited Hong Kong Sale of banking 2 ordinary shares of 100
equipment and HK$1 each and
provision of related 500,000 non-voting
hardware and deferred shares of
software technical HK$1 each
support services in
Hong Kong

Soluteck Technology Hong Kong Inactive 1,000,000 ordinary 100
Limited shares of HK$1 each

Task Consultants Limited Hong Kong Research and 5 ordinary shares of 100
(“Task Consultants”) development of HK$1 each

banking software in
Hong Kong

Truth Honour Electronic Hong Kong Sale of electronic 2 ordinary shares of 100
Limited banking systems HK$1 each and

and mailing systems 3,000,000 non-
and provision of voting deferred
related hardware shares of HK$1 each
and software
technical support
services in
Hong Kong
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Place of Principal activities Particulars of issued Attributable
Incorporation/ and place of shares capital/ equity

Company establishment operation registered capital interest
%

Subsidiaries held indirectly:

Truth Honour Electronic The People’s Sale of electronic Registered capital 100
(GFTZ) Limited*# Republic of banking systems US$200,000

China and mailing
(“PRC”) systems and

provision of
related hardware
and software
technical support
services in PRC

Truth Honour (BVI) British Virgin Investment holding in 100 ordinary shares 100
Holdings Limited Islands Hong Kong of US$1 each

�� !"#$%& PRC Design and Registered capital 100
�� ! *# development of US$150,000

banking and postal
software applications
in PRC

�� E��F�� ! PRC Provision of hardware Registered capital 100
�� ! *# and software US$150,000

technical support
services for
electronic banking
systems and mailing
systems in the PRC

�� !"#$%& PRC Sale of electronic Registered capital 100
�� ! *# banking systems and US$200,000

mailing systems and
provision of related
hardware and software
technical support
services in PRC

�� !"# E�� F PRC Sale of electronic Registered capital 100
�� ! *# banking systems and US$150,000

mailing systems and
provision of related
hardware and software
technical support
services in PRC

* Subsidiaries have financial accounting period of 31 December, which are not coterminous with the
Group.

# Subsidiaries not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The aggregate net assets of subsidiaries not
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers amounted to approximately 12 per cent. of the Group’s total
assets.



– 48 –

15 Associated company

Group
2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000

Share of net assets other than goodwill – –

Unlisted shares, at cost HK$1 HK$1

The following is the details of the associated company as at 31 March, 2002:

Place of Particulars Attributable
incorporation of issued equity

Company and business Principal activities shares held interest
%

Supreme Tech Development Hong Kong Inactive 2 ordinary shares of 50
Limited HK$1 each

16 Investment securities

Group
2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted, at cost 19 –
Less : Provision for diminution in value (19) –

– –

17 Inventories

Group
2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000

Merchandise 5,055 1,099
Spare parts 2,574 1,051

7,629 2,150
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18 Accounts receivables

The majority of the Group’s turnover is on credit terms ranging from sixty to ninety days. At 31
March, 2002, the ageing analysis of the accounts receivable were as follows:

Group
2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000

Current 8,567 12,377
30-60 days 6,146 3,811
61-90 days 1,333 5,266
Over 90 days 24,159 27,320

40,205 48,774

19 Accounts payable

At 31 March, 2002, the ageing analysis of the accounts payable were as follows:

Group
2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000

Current 6,001 11,959
30-60 days 1,995 347
61-90 days 10,603 1,790
Over 90 days 5,146 4,411

23,745 18,507

20 Bank balances and cash

Included in the balance is approximately HK$15,294,000 (2001: HK$8,208,000), representing
Renminbi deposits placed with banks in the PRC by the Group. The remittance of these funds
out of the PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

21 Taxation

Taxation represents liabilities of the companies comprising the Group in respect of Hong Kong
and overseas taxation as at 31 March, 2002 less provisional tax paid.

22 Deferred taxation

Group
2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000

At beginning and end of the year 91 91

Provided for in respect of:
Accelerated depreciation allowances 91 91
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23 Share capital – company

Authorised
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

No. of shares HK$’000

At 10 August, 2000, date of incorporation 1,000,000 100
Increase in authorised ordinary share capital 999,000,000 99,900

At 31 March, 2001 and 2002 1,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

No. of shares HK$’000

At 10 August, 2000, date of incorporation 2,000,000 200
Issue of shares 60,000,000 6,000
Capitalisation issue 388,000,000 38,800

At 31 March, 2001 450,000,000 45,000
Issue of shares (note a) 2,612,072 261

At 31 March, 2002 452,612,072 45,261

(a) On 28 December, 2001, the Directors of the Company approved to allot and issue 2,612,072
shares to Mr. Tam Wing Chit, Tom (“Mr. Tam”) and certain members of Task Consultants
at offer price for each share of HK$0.4, totalling HK$1,045,000, in satisfaction of the
management and performance bonus totalling HK$800,000 and HK$245,000 respectively,
to which they are entitled pursuant to their respective service contracts entered into with
Task Consultants as disclosed in the Prospectus.

Share options

(a) Under a share option scheme approved and adopted by the shareholders on 13 December,
2000 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the Directors of the Company may, at their discretion,
invite full-time employees including executive Directors to take up options to subscribe for
shares in the Company representing up to a maximum of 30 per cent. of the shares in issue
from time to time (excluding shares issued on exercise of options under the share option
scheme). No share options were granted by the Company under the Share Option Schemes
during the year.

(b) On 13 December, 2000, pursuant to the Pre-IPO share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme, share options to subscribe for 10,000,000 and 10,600,000 shares were
granted to certain Directors of the Company and employees of the Group respectively. The
exercise prices of the share options range from HK$0.2 to HK$0.4. All options are only
exercisable to the extent of an aggregate total of 25 per cent., 50 per cent., 75 per cent. and
100 per cent. of the Pre-IPO Share Options in each of the first to fourth anniversaries of the
commencement of the trading of the Shares on GEM respectively, and have a duration of
10 years from the date on which the offer of grant was made.

(c) During the year, no options were exercised and 1,300,000 options were lapsed upon the
resignation of the relevant employees of the Group. As at 31 March, 2002, options to
subscribe for 19,050,000 shares of the Company were outstanding.
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24 Reserves

(a) Group

Reserve
Share Capital arising from Exchange Retained

premium reserve Reorganisation reserve earnings Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Note i)

At 1 April, 2000 27,626 – (24,317 ) (4) 19,904 23,209

Placing of shares 18,000 – – – – 18,000

Placing and listing
expenses (6,416) – – – – (6,416)

Capitalisation issue (38,800) – – – – (38,800)
Acquisition

of a subsidiary – 2,228 – – – 2,228
Exchange difference – – – 2 – 2
Profit for the year – – – – 24,093 24,093
Dividend paid to the

then shareholders – – – – (30,000 ) (30,000)

At 31 March, 2001 410 2,228 (24,317 ) (2) 13,997 (7,684)

Company and
subsidiaries
At 31 March, 2001 410 2,228 (24,317 ) (2) 13,997 (7,684)

At 1 April, 2001 410 2,228 (24,317 ) (2) 13,997 (7,684)
Issue of shares 784 – – – – 784
Exchange difference – – – 2 – 2
Profit for the year – – – – 8,050 8,050

At 31 March, 2002 1,194 2,228 (24,317 ) – 22,047 1,152

2002 Final dividend
proposed – – – – (2,263 ) (2,263)

At 31 March, 2002 1,194 2,228 (24,317 ) – 19,784 (1,111)

Company and
subsidiaries
At 31 March, 2002 1,194 2,228 (24,317 ) – 19,784 (1,111)

Notes

(i) The reserve arising from Reorganisation of HK$24,317,000 represents the difference between

the nominal value of the share capital of subsidiaries acquired and the cost of investments in
subsidiaries by the Company in exchange thereof, and has been debited to the reserve arising

from Reorganisation account of the Group.
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(b) Company

(Accumulated
losses)/

Share Retained
premium earnings Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 10 August, 2000
(date of incorporation) – – –

Placing of shares 18,000 – 18,000
Placing and listing expenses (6,416) – (6,416)
Capitalisation issue (38,800) – (38,800)
Amount arising from Reorganisation 27,626 – 27,626
Loss for the year – (1,678) (1,678)

At 31 March, 2001 410 (1,678) (1,268)

At 1 April, 2001 410 (1,678) (1,268)
Issue of shares 784 – 784
Profit for the year – 4,190 4,190

At 31 March, 2002 1,194 2,512 3,706

2002 Final dividend proposed – (2,263) (2,263)

At 31 March, 2002 1,194 249 1,443
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25 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

(a) Reconciliation of profit from operation to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating
activities

Group
2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000

Profit from operation 9,298 29,606
Depreciation of fixed assets 1,138 920
Loss on disposal of fixed assets – 34
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 21 –
Provision for diminution in value of investment

securities 19 –
Management and performance bonus satisfied

by issue of shares of the Company (note e) 1,045 –
Increase in inventories (5,479) (1,793)
Decrease in accounts and bills receivables 2,696 4,085
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, deposits and

Prepayments 728 (2,812)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payables 5,238 (29,352)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and

accrued charges (2,243) 4,381
Decrease in receipt in advance (6,010) (4,365)
Interest income (660) (2,699)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 5,791 (1,995)

(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year

Share capital
including premium Bank loans

2002 2001 2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Balance at the beginning of
the year 45,410 27,826 – –

Net cash inflow from financing
activities – 17,584 5,084 –

Issue of shares (note e) 1,045 – – –

Balance at the end of the year 46,445 45,410 5,084 –
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(c) Disposal of a subsidiary

2002
HK$’000

Net assets disposed of :
Fixed assets 462
Other receivables and prepayment 75
Bank balances and cash 1
Other payables and accrued expenses (437)

101
Loss on disposal (21)

80

Satisfied by:
Interest in investment securities 19
Cash 61

80

(d) Analysis of the net inflow in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary:

2002
HK$’000

Cash consideration 61
Bank balances sold (1)

Net cash inflow in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary 60

(e) Major non-cash transactions

On 28 December, 2001, the Directors approved to allot and issued 2,612,072 shares at offer
price for each share of HK$0.4, totalling HK$1,045,000, in satisfaction of the performance
and management bonus paid to certain members of Task Consultants including Mr. Tam
(2001:HK$Nil).

26 Banking facilities

As at 31 March, 2002, the Group banking facilities of approximately HK$45,156,000 (2001:
HK$12,000,000) are secured by the following:

(a) pledged deposits of HK$7,000,000 (2001: HK$9,000,000);

(b) corporate guarantees by the Company and several subsidiaries of the Group of approximately
HK$46.5 million (2001: HK$12.0 million);

(c) personal guarantee by Mr. Tam of HK$0.4 million (2001: HK$ Nil)
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27 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments for office equipment, furniture and fixture

Group
2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000

Contracted but not provided for 33 367

(b) Commitments under operating leases – land and building

At 31 March, 2002, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under operating
leases as follows:

Group
2002 2001

restated
HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 1,234 1,447
In the second to fifth year inclusive 951 92

2,185 1,539

28 Related party transactions

During the year, the Group undertook the following material transactions with its related companies
in the normal course of business at terms of the underlying agreements:

Group
2002 2001

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Rental paid a Director (a) – 300
Consultancy fees paid to related companies (b) – 562
Receipt of consultancy income from a related

company (c) – 126

Rental paid to the related companies (d) 659 600
Management and performance bonus paid to

Mr. Tam and certain employees of Task Consultants (e) 1,045 –

Notes:

(a) The Group leased two office premises from Mr. Hou Hsiao Bing, an executive Director of the

Company, in Guangzhou and Chengdu of the PRC for the Group’s use.
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(b) Pretty City Limited (“PCL”), Lucky Red Limited (“LRL”) and Burble International Co. (“BIC”)

provided marketing consultancy services to the Group in respect of its operations in the PRC for

monthly or yearly fixed fee in accordance with the terms of the underlying agreements. PCL is
owned by Mr. Hou Chung, Ms. Chung Po Chu, Mr. Hou Hsiao Bing and Mr. Hou Hsiao Wen, Eddie.

LRL is owned by Ms. Chung Yuk Hung, Yvonne and her husband. BIC is wholly owned by Mr. Hou
Hsiao Wen, Eddie. Mr. Hou Hsiao Bing, Mr. Hou Hsiao Wen, Eddie and Ms. Chung Yuk Hung,

Yvonne are the Directors and shareholders of the Company. Mr. Hou Chung and Ms. Chung Po Chu
are the shareholders of the Company.

(c) The Group received consultancy income from Everscience Information System Co. Limited in
which Mr. Tam is a Director and has equity interests.

(d) The Group leased office premises from San Yee Investment Limited (“San Yee”) and Dynatek

Limited (“Dynatek”) in Hong Kong of HK$600,000 (2001: HK$600,000) and from Ms. Tsou Lo
Nien and Ms. Chung Po Chu in Shanghai, the PRC of HK$59,000 (2001: HK$Nil) for the Group’s

use. San Yee is owned by Mr. Chung Lok Fai and his wife, Ms. Tsou Lo Nien. Dynatek is owned by

Mr. Hou Chung and Ms. Chung Po Chu. Mr. Chung Lok Fai is the Director and shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Tsou Lo Nien is the shareholder of the company.

(e) Pursuant to service contracts entered into between Task Consultants, Mr. Tam and certain employees

of Task Consultants on 18 October, 2000 for a term of two years commencing from 1 October,
2000, Mr. Tam and certain employees will be entitled to management bonuses of HK$200,000 each

and performance bonuses calculated by reference to the net profits of Task Consultants for every
twelve months’ period ending on 30 September during the term. During the year, the Group allotted

and issued 2,612,072 shares to Mr. Tam and certain employees in satisfaction of the management

bonus, totalling HK$800,000, and performance bonus, totalling HK$245,000, to which they are
entitled pursuant to the service contracts.

The Directors confirmed that transactions (a) to (c) above were discontinued after the listing of
the Company on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

29 Ultimate holding company

The Directors regard Innovative Tech Worldwide Inc., a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company.

30 Approval of accounts

The accounts were approved by the board of Directors on 18 June, 2002.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Result
Turnover 208,001 303,391 212,774 234,805 238,727

Profit attributable to shareholders 8,050 24,093 22,991 25,414 17,343

Assets and liabilities
Total assets 100,770 90,843 106,559 128,805 110,295
Total liabilities 54,357 53,527 83,150 68,417 73,509

Net assets 46,413 37,316 23,409 60,388 36,786

The Reorganisation referred to in note 1 to the accounts has been reflected in the five year
financial summary for each of the four years ended 31 March, 2001 by regarding the Company
as having been the holding company of the Group from the earliest period presented.

By Order of the Board
Soluteck Holdings Limited

Chung Lok Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 June, 2002

This announcement will remain on the Company’s website and on the GEM website with the
domain name of www.hkgem.com on the “Latest Company Announcements” page for at least
7 days from the date of its posting.


